
 

 

 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

 
 
CLARK COUNTY AND GEORGINA 
STUART 
 
                                Petitioners, 
 
v. 
 
EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA IN AND 
FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK; THE 
HONORABLE SUSAN JOHNSON, 
DISTRICT JUDGE, 
 
                                 Respondent. 
 
and 
 
STEVE EGGLESTON, an individual, 
 

 Real Party-In-Interest. 
 

 

CASE NO. 87906 

 

 

DISTRICT COURT CASE NO. 

A-16-748919-C 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENT TO APPENDIX TO EMERGENCY PETITION FOR 

WRIT OF MANDAMUS  

VOLUME 3 OF 3 

 

 

 

 

FELICIA GALATI, ESQ.    

Nevada Bar No. 007341     

STEPHANIE A. BARKER, ESQ. 

Nevada Bar No. 003176 

OLSON CANNON & GORMLEY    

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue   

Las Vegas, NV 89129      

Attorneys for Petitioners Clark County 

and Georgina Stuart 

Electronically Filed
Mar 15 2024 03:38 PM
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme Court

Docket 87906   Document 2024-09362



 

 

SUPPLEMENT TO APPENDIX TO EMERGENCY PETITION FOR 

WRIT OF MANDAMUS  

VOLUME 3 OF 3 

 

Date Title Bates Numbers 

2/9/22 Default of Brian Callahan WRIT262-266 

2/9/22 Default of Lisa Callahan WRIT267-271 

11/30/23 Docketing Statement – Civil Appeals WRIT272-329 

2/26/24 Motion for Summary Judgment Hearing Transcript from 

hearing on 11/7/23 – Amended/Corrected 

WRIT330-347 

 

 DATED this 15th day of March, 2024.   

      /s/ Felicia Galati, Esq. 

      ______________________ 

FELICIA GALATI, ESQ. 

Nevada Bar No. 007341 

STEPHANIE A. BARKER, ESQ. 

Nevada Bar No. 003176 

OLSON CANNON & GORMLEY 

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue 

Las Vegas, NV 89129 

fgalati@ocgas.com 

sbarker@ocgas.com 

Attorneys for Petitioners Clark County 

and Georgina Stuart 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 15th day of March, 2024, I sent via e-mail 

a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing SUPPLEMENT TO 

APPENDIX TO EMERGENCY PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS by 

electronic service through the Nevada Supreme Court’s website, (or, if necessary, 

by U.S. Mail, first class, postage pre-paid), upon the following: 

 

Paola M. Armeni, Esq. 

parmeni@ClarkHill.com 

William D. Schuller, Esq. 

wschuller@ClarkHill.com 

CLARK HILL, LLP 

1700 S. Pavilion Center Dr. 

Suite 500 

Las Vegas, NV  89135 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 

 

 

 

Honorable Judge Susan H. Johnson 

Eighth Judicial District Court 

Department 22 

200 Lewis Avenue 

Las Vegas, NV 89155 

U.S. Mail 

 

 

 

                            /s/ Lisa Rico                                                             

 An Employee of OLSON CANNON & GORMLEY 
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mailto:wschuller@ClarkHill.com


 

Eggleston v. Stuart - Case Number: A-16-748919-C 

ClarkHill\K8804\435026\265500659.v1-2/9/22 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 
DFLT 

PAOLA M. ARMENI  
Nevada Bar No. 8537 
Email: parmeni@clarkhill.com 
CLARK HILL PLLC 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Telephone: (702) 862-8300 
Facsimile: (702) 862-8400 

Attorney for Plaintiff, Steve Eggleston 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

STEVE EGGLESTON, 

                                          Plaintiff, 

-vs- 

GEORGINA STUART; DEPARTMENT OF 

FAMILY SERVICES, CHILD SUPPORT 

SERVICES, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA; 

LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN CALLAHAN; 

AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100, INCLUSIVE, 

                      Defendants. 

 

 
 
 
 
CASE NO. A-16-748919-C 
DEPT NO. 23 
 
 

DEFAULT OF BRIAN CALLAHAN 
 

 

 
 

 

It appearing from the files and records in the above entitled action, as well as Exhibit 1, 

the Declaration of Paola M. Armeni, Esq. attached hereto that BRIAN CALLAHAN, a 

Defendant herein, being duly served with a copy of the Summons and First Amended Complaint 

by personal service on the 8th day of March, 2018; that more than twenty days exclusive of the 

day of service, having expired since service upon the Defendant; that no answer or other 

appearance having been filed and no further time having been granted, the default of the above-

named for failing answer or otherwise plead to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint is hereby 

entered. 

/// 

/// 

 

Case Number: A-16-748919-C

Electronically Filed
2/9/2022 2:00 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

WRIT262

mailto:parmeni@clarkhill.com
mailto:parmeni@clarkhill.com
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The undersigned hereby requests and directs the entry of default of BRIAN 

CALLAHAN. 

 

CLARK HILL PLLC 

  
 

CLERK OF COURT 

 

   /s/ Paola M. Armeni, Esq. 

  

 
 

 

By:   

PAOLA M. ARMENI  
Nevada Bar No. 8537 
Email: parmeni@clarkhill.com 
CLARK HILL PLLC 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Telephone: (702) 862-8300 
Facsimile: (702) 862-8400 

 

 

 
     Deputy Clerk Date 

 

A-16-748919-C
Michelle McCarthy

2/11/2022

STEVEN D. GRIERSON

WRIT263
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EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
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DFLT 

PAOLA M. ARMENI  
Nevada Bar No. 8537 
Email: parmeni@clarkhill.com 
CLARK HILL PLLC 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Telephone: (702) 862-8300 
Facsimile: (702) 862-8400 

Attorney for Plaintiff, Steve Eggleston 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

STEVE EGGLESTON, 

                                          Plaintiff, 

-vs- 

GEORGINA STUART; DEPARTMENT OF 

FAMILY SERVICES, CHILD SUPPORT 

SERVICES, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA; 

LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN CALLAHAN; 

AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100, INCLUSIVE, 

                      Defendants. 

 

 
 
 
 
CASE NO. A-16-748919-C 
DEPT NO. 23 
 
 

DECLARATION OF PAOLA M. ARMENI 

IN SUPPORT OF DEFAULT OF BRIAN 

CALLAHAN 
 

 

 
 

 

DECLARATION OF PAOLA M. ARMENI, ESQ., IN SUPPORT OF DEFAULT OF 

BRIAN CALLAHAN 

1. I, Paola M. Armeni, Esq. declare under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State 

of Nevada that the following is true and correct.  See NRS 53.045.1 

2. I am an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada and am a member 

at the law firm of Clark Hill, PLLC.  

3. I am the attorney of record for the Plaintiff in the above-entitled matter.  

                                                      
1 NRS 53.045 provides that declarations may be used in place of affidavits.  In part, NRS 53.045 provides: “Any 

matter whose existence or truth may be established by an affidavit or other sworn declaration may be established 

with the same effect by an unsworn declaration of its existence or truth signed by the declarant under penalty of 

perjury….”  See also Buckwalter M.D. v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Ct., 234 P.3d 920 (Nev. 2010). 

WRIT265
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4. I am competent to testify to the matters asserted herein, of which I have personal 

knowledge, except as to those matters stated upon information and belief. As to those matters 

stated upon information and belief, I believe them to be true.  

5. I make this Declaration in support of the Default of Brian Callahan. 

6. Plaintiff’s filed the First Amended Complaint with this Court on August 10, 2017. 

7. Plaintiff’s Summons and First Amended Complaint was served on BRIAN 

CALLAHAN by personally delivering and leaving a copy with BRIAN CALLAHAN, residing 

at Defendant BRIAN CALLAHAN’s place of residence at 300 Ashley Dr., New Lenox, IL, 

60451. 

8. As of the date of this filing and declaration, BRIAN CALLAHAN has not 

responded. 

FURTHER, DECLARANT SAYETH NAUGHT. 

 DATED this 25th day of January 2021. 

 

  /s/ Paola M. Armeni, Esq.     

PAOLA M. ARMENI, ESQ. 
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DFLT 

PAOLA M. ARMENI  
Nevada Bar No. 8537 
Email: parmeni@clarkhill.com 
CLARK HILL PLLC 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Telephone: (702) 862-8300 
Facsimile: (702) 862-8400 

Attorney for Plaintiff, Steve Eggleston 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

STEVE EGGLESTON, 

                                          Plaintiff, 

-vs- 

GEORGINA STUART; DEPARTMENT OF 

FAMILY SERVICES, CHILD SUPPORT 

SERVICES, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA; 

LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN CALLAHAN; 

AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100, INCLUSIVE, 

                      Defendants. 

 

 
 
 
 
CASE NO. A-16-748919-C 
DEPT NO. 23 
 
 

DEFAULT OF LISA CALLAHAN 
 

 

 
 

 

It appearing from the files and records in the above entitled action, as well as Exhibit 1, 

the Declaration of Paola M. Armeni, Esq. attached hereto that LISA CALLAHAN, a Defendant 

herein, being duly served with a copy of the Summons and First Amended Complaint by 

personal service, delivering and leaving a copy with Brian Callahan, Co-occupant, on the 8th day 

of March, 2018; that more than twenty days exclusive of the day of service, having expired since 

service upon the Defendant; that no answer or other appearance having been filed and no further 

time having been granted, the default of the above-named for failing to answer or otherwise 

plead to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint is hereby entered. 

//// 

//// 

//// 

Case Number: A-16-748919-C

Electronically Filed
2/9/2022 2:00 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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The undersigned hereby requests and directs the entry of default of LISA CALLAHAN. 

 

CLARK HILL PLLC 

  
 

CLERK OF COURT 

 

 /s/ Paola M. Armeni, Esq. 

  

 
 

 

By:   

PAOLA M. ARMENI  
Nevada Bar No. 8537 
Email: parmeni@clarkhill.com 
CLARK HILL PLLC 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Telephone: (702) 862-8300 
Facsimile: (702) 862-8400 

 

 

 
     Deputy Clerk Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A-16-748919-C
Michelle McCarthy

2/11/2022

STEVEN D. GRIERSON

WRIT268
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EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
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DFLT 

PAOLA M. ARMENI  
Nevada Bar No. 8537 
Email: parmeni@clarkhill.com 
CLARK HILL PLLC 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Telephone: (702) 862-8300 
Facsimile: (702) 862-8400 

Attorney for Plaintiff, Steve Eggleston 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

STEVE EGGLESTON, 

                                          Plaintiff, 

-vs- 

GEORGINA STUART; DEPARTMENT OF 

FAMILY SERVICES, CHILD SUPPORT 

SERVICES, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA; 

LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN CALLAHAN; 

AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100, INCLUSIVE, 

                      Defendants. 

 
 
 
 
CASE NO. A-16-748919-C 
DEPT NO. 23 
 
 

DECLARATION OF PAOLA M. ARMENI 

IN SUPPORT OF DEFAULT OF LISA 

CALLAHAN 
 

 

 
 

 

DECLARATION OF PAOLA M. ARMENI, ESQ., IN SUPPORT OF DEFAULT OF LISA 

CALLAHAN 

1. I, Paola M. Armeni, Esq. declare under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State 

of Nevada that the following is true and correct.  See NRS 53.045.1 

2. I am an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada and am a member 

at the law firm of Clark Hill, PLLC.  

3. I am the attorney of record for the Plaintiff in the above-entitled matter.  

4. I am competent to testify to the matters asserted herein, of which I have personal 

                                                      
1 NRS 53.045 provides that declarations may be used in place of affidavits.  In part, NRS 53.045 provides: “Any 

matter whose existence or truth may be established by an affidavit or other sworn declaration may be established 

with the same effect by an unsworn declaration of its existence or truth signed by the declarant under penalty of 

perjury….”  See also Buckwalter M.D. v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Ct., 234 P.3d 920 (Nev. 2010). 

WRIT270
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knowledge, except as to those matters stated upon information and belief. As to those matters 

stated upon information and belief, I believe them to be true.  

5. I make this Declaration in support of the Default of Lisa Callahan. 

6. Plaintiff’s filed the First Amended Complaint with this Court on August 10, 2017. 

7. Plaintiff’s Summons and First Amended Complaint was served on LISA 

CALLAHAN by personally delivering and leaving a copy with Brian Callahan, Co-occupant 

residing at Defendant LISA CALLAHAN’s place of residence at 300 Ashley Dr., New Lenox, 

IL, 60451. 

8. As of the date of this filing and declaration, LISA CALLAHAN has not 

responded. 

FURTHER, DECLARANT SAYETH NAUGHT. 

 DATED this 25th day of January 2021. 

 

  /s/ Paola M. Armeni, Esq.     

PAOLA M. ARMENI, ESQ. 

 

WRIT271



Appellants must complete this docketing statement in compliance with NRAP 14(a). The
purpose of the docketing statement is to assist the Supreme Court in screening jurisdiction,
identifying issues on appeal, assessing presumptive assignment to the Court of Appeals under
NRAP 17, scheduling cases for oral argument and settlement conferences, classifying cases for
expedited treatment and assignment to the Court of Appeals, and compiling statistical
information.

WARNING

This statement must be completed fully, accurately and on time. NRAP 14(c). The Supreme
Court may impose sanctions on counsel or appellant if it appears that the information provided
is incomplete or inaccurate. Id. Failure to fill out the statement completely or to file it in a
timely manner constitutes grounds for the imposition of sanctions, including a fine and/or
dismissal of the appeal.

A complete list of the documents that must be attached appears as Question 27 on this docketing
statement. Failure to attach all required documents will result in the delay of your appeal and
may result in the imposition of sanctions.

This court has noted that when attorneys do not take seriously their obligations under NRAP 14
to complete the docketing statement properly and conscientiously, they waste the valuable
judicial resources of this court, making the imposition of sanctions appropriate. See KDI Sylvan
Pools v. Workman, 107 Nev. 340, 344, 810 P.2d 1217, 1220 (1991). Please use tab dividers to
separate any attached documents.

INDICATE FULL CAPTION:

DOCKETING STATEMENT
CIVIL APPEALS

GENERAL INFORMATION

No.

Revised December 2015

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

STEVEN EGGLESTON, individually,
Appellant,
vs.
CLARK COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF
FAMILY SERVICES,
Respondent.

87583 Electronically Filed
Nov 30 2023 10:23 AM
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme Court

Docket 87583   Document 2023-38809

WRIT272



1. Judicial District Department

County Judge

District Ct. Case No.

2. Attorney filing this docketing statement:

Attorney Telephone

Firm

Address

Client(s)

If this is a joint statement by multiple appellants, add the names and addresses of other counsel and
the names of their clients on an additional sheet accompanied by a certification that they concur in the
filing of this statement.

3. Attorney(s) representing respondents(s):

Client(s)

Address

Firm

TelephoneAttorney

Client(s)

Address

Firm

TelephoneAttorney

(List additional counsel on separate sheet if necessary)

First 2

Carson City James E. Wilson, Jr.

20 OC 00164 1B

William D. Schuller, Esq. (702) 862-8300

Clark Hill PLLC

1700 S. Pavilion Center Drive, Suite 500
Las Vegas, Nevada 89135

Appellant Steven Eggleston

Respondent Clark County Department of Family Services

Juvenile Division
601 North Pecos Rd., #470
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

District Attorney's Office

(702) 455-5320Amity C. Latham, Esq.

Respondent Clark County Department of Family Services

Juvenile Division
601 North Pecos Rd., #470
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

District Attorney's Office

(702) 455-5320Felicia Quinlan, Esq.

WRIT273



4. Nature of disposition below (check all that apply):

Judgment after bench trial

Other disposition (specify):

ModificationOriginal

Divorce Decree:

Review of agency determination

Grant/Denial of declaratory relief

Grant/Denial of injunction

Grant/Denial of NRCP 60(b) relief

Default judgment

Summary judgment

Judgment after jury verdict

Other (specify):

Failure to prosecute

Failure to state a claim

Lack of jurisdiction

Dismissal:

5. Does this appeal raise issues concerning any of the following?

Child Custody

Venue

Termination of parental rights

6. Pending and prior proceedings in this court. List the case name and docket number
of all appeals or original proceedings presently or previously pending before this court which
are related to this appeal:

7. Pending and prior proceedings in other courts. List the case name, number and
court of all pending and prior proceedings in other courts which are related to this appeal
(e.g., bankruptcy, consolidated or bifurcated proceedings) and their dates of disposition:

EGGLESTON VS. STUART (Supreme Court Case No. 80838)
EGGLESTON VS. STUART (Supreme Court Case No. 77168)

STEVE EGGLESTON vs. GEORGINA STUART, et al.
Case No. A-16-748919-C
Clark County District Court
Jury Trial Set for January 2024

WRIT274



8. Nature of the action. Briefly describe the nature of the action and the result below:

9. Issues on appeal. State concisely the principal issue(s) in this appeal (attach separate
sheets as necessary):

10. Pending proceedings in this court raising the same or similar issues. If you are
aware of any proceedings presently pending before this court which raises the same or
similar issues raised in this appeal, list the case name and docket numbers and identify the
same or similar issue raised:

This appeal concerns the First Judicial District Court Department II denying a Petition for
Judicial Review and affirming a final administrative decision of Hearing Officer Michelle O.
Tobler, Esq., upholding the Clark County Department of Family Services substantiating a
finding of Physical Injury (Abuse) - Physical Risk against Steve Eggleston pursuant to NRS
Chapter 432B and NAC Chapter 432B.

Issue #1: Was it procedurally improper for the District Court to order Hearing Officer Tobler
to issue an amended decision?
Issue #2: Was the Department of Family Services' substantiation an arbitrary and
capricious abuse of discretion?

N/A

WRIT275



11. Constitutional issues. If this appeal challenges the constitutionality of a statute, and
the state, any state agency, or any officer or employee thereof is not a party to this appeal,
have you notified the clerk of this court and the attorney general in accordance with NRAP 44
and NRS 30.130?

N/A

No

Yes

If not, explain:

12. Other issues. Does this appeal involve any of the following issues?

Reversal of well-settled Nevada precedent (identify the case(s))

An issue arising under the United States and/or Nevada Constitutions

A substantial issue of first impression

An issue of public policy

An issue where en banc consideration is necessary to maintain uniformity of this
court's decisions

A ballot question

If so, explain:

WRIT276



15. Judicial Disqualification. Do you intend to file a motion to disqualify or have a
justice recuse him/herself from participation in this appeal? If so, which Justice?

Was it a bench or jury trial?

14. Trial. If this action proceeded to trial, how many days did the trial last?

13. Assignment to the Court of Appeals or retention in the Supreme Court. Briefly
set forth whether the matter is presumptively retained by the Supreme Court or assigned to
the Court of Appeals under NRAP 17, and cite the subparagraph(s) of the Rule under which
the matter falls. If appellant believes that the Supreme Court should retain the case despite
its presumptive assignment to the Court of Appeals, identify the specific issue(s) or circum-
stance(s) that warrant retaining the case, and include an explanation of their importance or
significance:

N/A

This matter is presumptively retained by the Supreme Court under NRAP 17(a)(10) ("Cases
involving the termination of parental rights or NRS Chapter 432B").

WRIT277



TIMELINESS OF NOTICE OF APPEAL

16. Date of entry of written judgment or order appealed from

If no written judgment or order was filed in the district court, explain the basis for
seeking appellate review:

17. Date written notice of entry of judgment or order was served

Was service by:

Delivery

Mail/electronic/fax

18. If the time for filing the notice of appeal was tolled by a post-judgment motion
(NRCP 50(b), 52(b), or 59)

(a) Specify the type of motion, the date and method of service of the motion, and
the date of filing.

NRCP 50(b)

NRCP 52(b)

NRCP 59

Date of filing

Date of filing

Date of filing

NOTE: Motions made pursuant to NRCP 60 or motions for rehearing or reconsideration may toll the
time for filing a notice of appeal. See AA Primo Builders v. Washington, 126 Nev. ____, 245
P.3d 1190 (2010).

(b) Date of entry of written order resolving tolling motion

(c) Date written notice of entry of order resolving tolling motion was served

Was service by:
Delivery

Mail

Oct 13, 2023

Oct 20, 2023

WRIT278



19. Date notice of appeal filed

If more than one party has appealed from the judgment or order, list the date each
notice of appeal was filed and identify by name the party filing the notice of appeal:

20. Specify statute or rule governing the time limit for filing the notice of appeal,
e.g., NRAP 4(a) or other

SUBSTANTIVE APPEALABILITY

21. Specify the statute or other authority granting this court jurisdiction to review
the judgment or order appealed from:
(a)

NRAP 3A(b)(1)

NRAP 3A(b)(2)

NRAP 3A(b)(3)

Other (specify)

NRS 38.205

NRS 233B.150

NRS 703.376

(b) Explain how each authority provides a basis for appeal from the judgment or order:

NRAP 4(a)

NRS Chapter 322B is the Nevada Administrative Procedure Act. The order appealed from
concerns a Petition for Judicial Review filed pursuant to NRS 233B.130. “An aggrieved
party may obtain a review of any final judgment of the district court by appeal to the
appellate court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to the rules fixed by the Supreme Court”
and such an “appeal shall be taken as in other civil cases.” NRS 233B.150.

WRIT279



22. List all parties involved in the action or consolidated actions in the district court:
(a) Parties:

(b) If all parties in the district court are not parties to this appeal, explain in detail why
those parties are not involved in this appeal, e.g., formally dismissed, not served, or
other:

23. Give a brief description (3 to 5 words) of each party's separate claims,
counterclaims, cross-claims, or third-party claims and the date of formal
disposition of each claim.

24. Did the judgment or order appealed from adjudicate ALL the claims alleged
below and the rights and liabilities of ALL the parties to the action or consolidated
actions below?

Yes

No

25. If you answered "No" to question 24, complete the following:

(a) Specify the claims remaining pending below:

STEVEN EGGLESTON, Petitioner
DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES, CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES, CLARK
COUNTY, NEVADA, Respondent

Steven Eggleston - Petition for Judicial Review (October 13, 2023)

WRIT280



(b) Specify the parties remaining below:

(c) Did the district court certify the judgment or order appealed from as a final judgment
pursuant to NRCP 54(b)?

Yes

No

(d) Did the district court make an express determination, pursuant to NRCP 54(b), that
there is no just reason for delay and an express direction for the entry of judgment?

No

Yes

26. If you answered "No" to any part of question 25, explain the basis for seeking
appellate review (e.g., order is independently appealable under NRAP 3A(b)):

27. Attach file-stamped copies of the following documents:
é The latest-filed complaint, counterclaims, cross-claims, and third-party claims
é Any tolling motion(s) and order(s) resolving tolling motion(s)
é Orders of NRCP 41(a) dismissals formally resolving each claim, counterclaims, cross-

claims and/or third-party claims asserted in the action or consolidated action below,
even if not at issue on appeal

é Any other order challenged on appeal
é Notices of entry for each attached order

The Amended Order Denying Petition for Judicial Review is independently appealable under
NRAP 3A(b)(1).
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VERIFICATION

I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read this docketing statement, that
the information provided in this docketing statement is true and complete to the
best of my knowledge, information and belief, and that I have attached all required
documents to this docketing statement.

Name of appellant

State and county where signed

Name of counsel of record

Signature of counsel of recordDate

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on the day of , , I served a copy of this

completed docketing statement upon all counsel of record:

By mailing it by first class mail with sufficient postage prepaid to the following
address(es): (NOTE: If all names and addresses cannot fit below, please list names
below and attach a separate sheet with the addresses.)

By personally serving it upon him/her; or

,day ofDated this

Signature

Steven Eggleston

Clark County, Nevada

William D. Schuller, Esq.

/s/ William D. Schuller, Esq.Nov 30, 2023

30th November 2023

Amity C. Latham, Esq.
Felicia Quinlan, Esq.
Juvenile Division
601 North Pecos Rd., #470
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

2023November30th

/s/ Tanya Bain
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STEVE EGGLESTON
10a Market Place
Shepton Mallet, England, BA4 5AZ
+44 (0)7784 850 751

Appellant, Pro Se

STEVEN EGGLESTON

Appellant.

.VS-

CLARK COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF
FAMILY SERVICES

Respondent.

i{[['fi it r l!-[0

t[tl Hsrl l? lfi 'l:

DISTRICT COURT 
AU6ii[Y U*''iItfiI.

CARSON CITY, NEV4Pr, K

0(

11f n;iiY

10 0C or,

-F
\\e t\ rg,

CASE NO. 1362581

PETITION FOR JUDICIAL
REVIEW
rNRS 2338.130)

COMES NOW APPELLANT STEVEN EGGLESTON, who petitions for judicial review

and alleges as follows:

1. Appellant appealed an alleged Substantiation of child abuse/neglect.

2. Appellant Moved for Further Clarification of the allegations; moved multiple times to

Dismiss the alleged Substantiation as baseless, fraudulent, etc.; moved to Continue the hearing;

and moved to Disqualify certain parties, including Hearing Offrce Michelle O. Tobler, Esq.,

among other illegalities, inegularities, and corruptions.

3. On 15 September 2020,the hearing was held without Appellant's participation in what

can only be described as a Star Chamber setting, an abuse of process, and a scenario of

corruption and racketeering.

4. All of the relief requested by Appellant was denied or not considered'
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5. On 15 October 2020, HO Michelle O. Tobler, Esq., who herself was improperly selected

as HO, further denied all the requested relief and entered false, erroneous, fraudulent,

defamatory, and perjurious findings, to which she was complicit, in an effort to aid Respondent

in unlawfully, unconstitutionally, and perversely defeating Appellant's civil rights claims

currently pending before the Nevada Supreme Court. These rulings were served by email on20

October 2020. To Appellant's knowledge, they have never seen served by mail.

6. The Agency/HO decisions and findings entered thereby were and are erroneous; not

supported by substantial evidence; in violation of state and federal constitutional, statutory, and

regulatory provisions; in excess of the Agency's statutory, constitutional, and regulatory

authority; made upon an unlawful and comrpt procedure and process; are affected by substantial

errors of law, procedure, and evidence; are clearly enoneous in light of the whole record; and are

arbitrary and capricious.

7. In addition to the foregoing, the Agency Respondent and individuals acting on its behalf,

including the HO, lacked any constitutional, statutory, regulatory, or subject matter jurisdiction

over the cause, were and are barred by res judicata and collateral estoppel and other judicial

doctrines of estoppel and waiver from making the orders and findings, and lacked subject matter

jurisdiction to act as they did.

8. Further, the entire Agency proceeding constitutes and is subject to federal claims of

racketeering, abuse of process, and civil rights violations, of which the Agency, its officers and

the HO have been made aware and served, thereby making the entire proceeding a travesty of

justice designed to fraudulently evade accountability and responsibility, cover up crimes

committed (including kidnapping, trespass, assault, obstruction ofjustice, and perjury), not only

as to Appellant but other members of his family and other families in Nevada.
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WHEREFORE, Appellant requests that all decisions entered below be set

aside/overturned/rescinded/expunged, that Appellant's name be removed from the CAPTA

registry retroactively to the beginning, that the actions taken and his family be declared unl

corrupt and unconstitional, and for such other and further relief as shall be deemed by the Court

asjust, equitable and proper.

DATE: November 16,2020

Page 3 of 4

cn
AJ
hoo
o_

WRIT285



1

2

2

4

6

6

8

o

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I herebv certifr that PERSONAL SERVICE of the above PETITION FOR
JUDICIAL REVIEW was made this November. 2020, as follows:

HEAD OF THE CLARK COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES

TIM BURCH, ADMINISTRATOR, CLARK COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES

CLARK COUNTY. NEVADA

AARON DARNELL FORD

ATTORNEY GE,NERAL OF THE, STATE OF NEVADA

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

CARSON CITY, NEVADA

s
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o
o_Page 4 ot 4
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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 

 
STEVE EGGLESTON, 
 
 
                              Plaintiff, 
vs. 
 
 
GEORGINA STUART, 
 
                              Defendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 
 
  CASE NO.  A-16-748919-C 
 
  DEPT. XXII 
 
 
   *** AMENDED/CORRECTED *** 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE SUSAN JOHNSON, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

NOVEMBER 7, 2023 

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE 
 
 

DEFENDANTS CLARK COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART’S MOTION FOR 
SUMMARY JUDGMENT  

 
 

  APPEARANCES: 
                 
  For the Plaintiff:      PAOLA M. ARMENI, ESQ. 
        WILLIAM D. SCHULLER, ESQ. 
 
          
  For the Defendant:     FELICIA GALATI, ESQ.  
        STEPHANIE BARKER, ESQ. 
  
 
 
  :         
RECORDED BY:  NORMA RAMIREZ, COURT RECORDER 

Case Number: A-16-748919-C

Electronically Filed
2/26/2024 8:03 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 7, 2023 AT 9:25 A.M. 

 

 THE COURT:  Eggleston versus Stuart, case number A16-748919-C.  Okay.  

Would you announce your appearances for the record?  Let’s start with Plaintiff’s 

counsel. 

 MS. ARMENI:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Paola Armeni on behalf of 

Plaintiff Eggleston. 

 MR. SCHULLER:  William Schuller also on behalf of Plaintiff: 

 MS. GALATI:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Felicia Galati appearing for Clark 

County and Georgina Stuart. 

 MS. BARKER: Good morning, Your Honor.  Stephanie Barker for Clark 

County and Georgina Stuart. 

 THE COURT:  Okay.  And this is Clark County and Ms. Stuart’s Motion for 

Summary Judgment and I have read your papers.  I did not get through all of the 

decision on the petition for judicial review though.  It’s quite long.   

 MS. GALATI:  It is, 38 pages. 

 THE COURT:  Okay. 

 MS. GALATI:  All right.  May I proceed? 

 THE COURT:  You may. 

 MS. GALATI:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Defendants are entitled to summary 

judgment on all claims.  The undisputed case facts here are that on January 7, 2015 

Georgina Stuart attended at the Eggleston home, there were multiple people 

present, the Plaintiff, Laura Rodriguez, [indecipherable], the mother, Lisa Callahan, 

the aunt, Alexis Rodriguez, the sister, and other people.  Stuart took police with her 

because that was protocol in case there were going to be safety issues because she 
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had to remove four children if that was the option that was going to be chosen.  

Also, there were issues regarding the mother’s untreated mental health and drug 

and alcohol abuse issues and father’s lack of protecting Cassidy that caused 

concerns about what was going to happen at the home.  Stuart advised everyone 

that management determined the family had two options because the Illinois family 

that had been provided support for the family was leaving town.  The two options 

were removal or temporary guardianships to the Callahan’s.  Plaintiff has the right to 

make a choice between the two options as to what he wanted to do.  If they chose 

removal the children would have been taken into protective capacity and then he 

would have had a hearing after that, if they chose the temporary guardianships then 

DFS would be out of the case.  Plaintiff on the advice of his attorney decided to sign 

the temporary guardianship.  Those are the facts. 

  There is no case establishing that if DFS, if management determines a 

decision has to be made and that options have to be presented like the options that 

were presented here that that choice is unconstitutional.  Not a single case have 

been -- has been cited by the Plaintiff establishing that.  The Plaintiff has litigated 

the constitutional and statutory issues a number of times, he’s had two 

administrative appeals, he filed a petition for judicial review before the First Judicial 

District Court and that court denied his petition.  I’m gonna focus on the 1983 claim 

only and leave the state law claims to Your Honor based on the papers.  The 

parents’ rights are not absolute and DFS has an interest in the welfare of children 

and can limit parental authority where children’s competing rights are impacted, they 

can even totally deprive a parent of rights under certain circumstances.  There are 

three bases to which we are entitled to summary judgment on the 1983 claim.  The 

first is res judicata, the second is Plaintiff could not establish his claims to the 
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standard of deliberate indifference, and the third is qualified immunity.  Res judicata 

relies of course on the decision made by the First Judicial District Court.  In essence 

the Court has already decided the claims that this Court would decide and 

considered -- and considered the evidence and documents that this Court would 

consider.   

  The First Judicial District Court determined, and I’m at page 37 if that 

helps you, Your Honor.  We go to -- from page 37 to 38.  The -- 

 THE COURT:  I’m there. 

 MS. GALATI:  -- First District determined that DFS -- DFS’s substan -- 

substantiation decision was, one, not in violation of a constitutional right under a 

statutory provision, two, not in excess of statutory authority, three, not based on 

unlawful procedure, four, not affected by other error of law, five, not clearly 

erroneous in view of the reliable probative and substantial evidence on the whole of 

the record and not arbitrary or capricious and upheld the findings.  So, when you 

turn to res judicata there’s three elements.  Are the issues decided in -- in the 

judicial review case the issues that would be -- that are to be decided here?  Yes.  

They’re exactly the same.  Second, is it a final decision on the merits?  Yes.  Third, 

is the party in the judicial review case the same party here?  Yes.  So, the answer is 

the 1983 claim is barred by res judicata.   

 THE COURT:  You say res judicata but are you referring to both issue and 

claim preclusion which is discussed like by Five Star and its progeny? 

 MS. GALATI:  Both because, Your Honor, if you look at the -- I know you 

haven’t read the decision but if -- 

 THE COURT:  And I -- 

 MS. GALATI  -- you -- 
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 THE COURT:  -- apologize for that. 

 MS. GALATI:  -- no, no, no.   We’ve given you a lot of material.  If you actually 

look at the decision, the decision was based on the CPS reports -- and all of this is 

what is going to before the Court.  The decision was on all of CPS reports, the 

UNITY notes, Ms. Stuart testified in the underlying administrative hearings, based 

on the Nevada initial assessment, based on the Present Danger Plan, based on 

what happened on January 7, 2015 with the guardianship, finding the signing of the 

guardianship was voluntary, finding that the police did not coerce, etcetera, the 

Plaintiff to sign, finding that the Plaintiff signed based on his attorney’s advice.  And 

so everything that would be considered here has been considered multiple times 

and most importantly by the First Judicial District Court and that’s why the order is 

so long because it goes through everything that happened and the whole -- all the 

issues regarding the father’s protective capacity, etcetera, what happened, what 

didn’t happen.  During the pendency of the Present Danger Plan, Your Honor, that 

Plaintiff was supposed to be supervising the mother as well as the two sisters were 

other supervisors.  The mother was consuming Vodka, Xanax and Codeine, okay?  

So, even with the Present Danger Plan in place the -- the children were not 

protected because the mother was still abusing drugs and alcohol during the -- 

during the plan and that’s in the order as well.  So, everything that has to be 

considered has been considered.  He’s made the same claims there as he’s made 

here.  He’s raised the same issues there as he’s raised here therefore we’re entitled 

to summary judgment on res judicata. 

  The next argument is that Plaintiff cannot meet the deliberate 

indifference standard.  I’m sure Your Honor knows it’s a very stringent standard, we 

cited a number of cases establishing that including the Mo-Mox Caselis case from 
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the 9th -- from the 9th Circuit.  The bottom line is all of the cases established that 

substantial due process rights are implicated where a child is removed or a parent’s 

parental rights are terminated.  That didn’t happen here.  There’s no dispute about 

that.  That’s the end of the inquiry on the standard of due process.  Plaintiff hasn’t 

cited any case that even approaches the facts here to say, oh, this case establishes 

my constitutional right has been violated.  None.  The procedural due process claim 

Plaintiff was advised of the report allegation, he responded thereto, he had two 

appeals of the substantiation and he had a judicial review.  He’s had all of the 

process he’s entitled to.  Second, again, res judicata applies here as to the 

constitutional decision and the statutory decisions made by the First Judicial District 

Court.   

  Under the standard of deliberate indifference which is a stringent 

standard the Court has to consider whether DFS -- DFS’s offer of a temporary 

guardianship option which Plaintiff accepted on the advice of counsel was 

unconstitutional.  It wasn’t.  There was no objectively substantial risk of harm being 

posed by giving the family an option as to what to choose.  DFS was not aware of 

facts from which an inference could be drawn, there was a substantial risk of serious 

harm, and three, DFS did not draw that inference in a reasonable officer would not 

draw that inference because there’s no case law establishing that so there is nothing 

to look to come to that conclusion.  This case is unlike -- this case is unlike the 

cases we’ve cited to you where the Court has found deliberate indifference.  The 

parents have the right to choose a temporary guardianship and determine what 

would happen and end the DFS/CPS case.  The decisions that the temporary 

guardian -- guardian made, Lisa Callahan, after the fact the guardian that Plaintiff 

accepted for his children are not the responsibility of the county Defendants.  
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Plaintiff argues DFS has an obligation to pursue reunification; it did not have an 

obligation to pursue reunification.  Reunification is the goal when a child is removed 

from a home and then DFS works with the family eventually to reunite them if 

possible.  It does not apply in a case where there’s been no removal.   

  The third argument is that Defendants are entitled to qualified immunity.  

The United States Supreme Court has expressed frustration with lower courts for 

their failure to heed its decisions on qualified immunity.  It has consistently told lower 

courts to construe claims of qualified immunity not to define clearly established law 

at a high level of generality because it avoids the crucial question of whether the 

official acted reasonably in the particular circumstances.  In the SB case we cited for 

you the court indicated that qualified immunity to soc -- is important to society as a 

whole and because immunity from [indecipherable] is effectively lost if the case is 

erroneously permitted to go to trial.  There’s two elements to that test, anyone of 

them would require summary judgment. The first is whether the evidence shows the 

Defendant’s conduct violated a constitutional right.  The answer is no.  We didn’t 

take the children; we didn’t terminate Plaintiff’s parental rights.  Also, there’s the res 

judicata effect of the First Judicial District Court’s decision.  The federal case law 

that’s binding here is undisputed.  Also, DFS has broad discretion in various things 

in where the state has a -- a decision maker has discretion there’s no constitutionally 

protected interest.  That’s under the Morimoto case.  And there is plenty of case law 

that we cited that DFS has discretion on removal, investigation of abuse and 

neglect, placement of children, and various other things.  It’s a broad discretion.  So, 

that -- so, we satisfied the first element.  

  Second, whether the Defendant’s conduct violated clearly established 

law.  Again, the writing has to be sufficiently clear that every reasonable official 
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would have understood that what they were doing violated a right.  That’s not the 

case here, Your Honor.  We don’t have any case saying that, we don’t have any 

case even approaching that.  All the cases say removal, termination of parental 

rights.  Plaintiff has to identify a case -- this is under the SB case.  Plaintiff has to 

identify a case where a CPS investigator acting under similar circumstances as Ms. 

Stuart was held to have violated a liberty interest at issue.  There aren’t any such 

cases.  There are no cases saying that Plaintiff was entitled to a warning or a 

forewarning before a child is removed, before they’re told that they have options or 

anything like that.  No case law establishing that.  Bottom line the Plaintiff could not 

establish that Defendant’s conduct evidenced as deliberate indifference in this case 

and we are entitled to summary judgment on any one of those three grounds.   

 THE COURT:  Thank you.   

 MS. ARMENI:  Thank you, Your Honor.  When you view the facts in light of 

the non-moving party which is Mr. Eggleston the Motion for Summary Judgment 

should be denied.  Let me start with the Defendant’s claim that our -- our claims are 

barred by res judicata.  The Supreme Court while reviewing this case on the Motion 

to Dismiss I think described it best when they said we’re seeking different remedies 

for different wrongs.   

 THE COURT:  I have the decision right in front of me.  Do you have a page? 

 MS. ARMENI:  The Nevada Supreme Court decision, Your Honor -- 

 THE COURT:  Yeah. 

 MS. ARMENI:  -- or the First Judicial? 

 THE COURT:  The Supreme Court -- Nevada Supreme Court you said. 

 MS. ARMENI:  I don’t but I can -- 

 THE COURT:  Oh, well -- 
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 MS. ARMENI:  -- we can try to find it. 

 THE COURT:  -- were you referring to the First Judicial District or -- 

 MS. ARMENI:  No, Your Honor -- 

 THE COURT:  -- the -- 

 MS. ARMENI:  -- I’m -- I apologize.  No, I’m referring to the Nevada Supreme 

Court -- 

 THE COURT:  Right.  

 MS. ARMENI:  -- when they heard the motion -- the appeal on the Motion to 

Dismiss. 

 THE COURT:  Right.  And I have that in front of me. 

 MS. ARMENI:  And I don’t have the date -- I’m sorry, I don’t have the page in 

front of me but I -- 

 THE COURT:  Okay. 

 MS. ARMENI:  -- I can work on getting that for you. 

 THE COURT:  Okay.  I just wanted to follow along.   

 MS. ARMENI:  Certainly.  But in looking at that and that argument was slightly 

different because in that issue they were discussing exhaustion -- 

 THE COURT:  Right.  

 MS. ARMENI:  -- but the point was the Court recognized that the DFS finding 

or substantiation in the appeal of that was very different than the underlying facts of 

the 1983 claims because the 1983 claims are based on what happened before the 

substantiation.  The substantiation happened on February 2nd of 2015; at that point 

there was an appeal of the substantiation alone.  However, the 1983 violations of 

procedural due process claim which is based on the removal of the children without 

due process or the -- and I’m gonna get to that in a minute, and then the substantive 
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due process argument which is the interference with the parent/child relationship, 

but the 1983 claims are specifically from before what happened, what led up to the 

DFS making the decision to remove the children.  They are not identical, these 

decisions are not identical.  And concerning is although you have that 38 page order 

in front of you that was a rubberstamp of what the DA provided to Judge Wilson and 

unfortunately sought with grammatical errors and many other errors it was signed off 

on and we are appealing that.  We set -- we’ve already filed our notice of appeal 

with the Nevada Supreme Court on that -- on that order and I will tell you why, Your 

Honor, because the order itself is concerning.  Because unlike the administrative 

hearing before the First Judicial District Court that record was very limited.  There 

was no cross examination, there was no confrontation; nobody was challenging the 

evidence that was put before the fair hearing.  There were two witnesses, neither of 

them cross-examined.  And it’s interesting that the Defense got up here and pointed 

to a specific fact in the order where they say the Plaintiff failed to maintain 24 hour 

supervision resulting in Laura Rodriguez’s abuse, placing the children at risk.  When 

Georgina, the Defendant, Georgina Stuart was asked in her deposition in this case if 

Mr. Eggleston had done anything wrong when he was on the Present Danger Plan 

her answer was no and that’s found on page 176 and 177 of her deposition, lines 24 

through one.  So, you got this first judicial order pointing blame at Mr. Eggleston 

basically for some sort of disruption or not following the present danger plan, but 

what Ms. Stuart was asked during her deposition, that question, she had no 

concerns of his behavior during the Present Danger Plan.  So, for your -- those 

reasons, Your Honor, this is not identical and res judicata would not be appropriate 

in this -- in this matter.   

  The -- the Defense would like you -- to suggest that because there was 
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no removal or termination of parental right that we’re done.  There’s no case law, 

there’s nothing and this case should be finished.  If it was that easy and if it was that 

black and white I submit to the Court that when this case was before the Nevada 

Supreme Court they would have upheld the grant of Motion to Dismiss and they 

didn’t do that because they found areas where they said that this definitely could 

have been -- there was enough evidence at that time, and I submit to the Court that 

there’s much more evidence to support these due process violations.  The facts, 

Your Honor, we have to remember are really important.  Did an actual removal take 

place?  No.  However, when they showed up at Mr. Eggleston’s home on January 

7th of 2015 the intent to was to remove the children.  So, the question is you -- you’re 

showing up to remove, do you have a basis to remove?  And if you don’t have a 

basis to remove why are we even talking about a temporary guardianship?  That 

wouldn’t have been proper.  And those are the facts that we are challenging.   

  A threat of removal is nonetheless coercive when the social worker left 

objectively reasonable grounds believe that the child had been abused or was 

eminent danger of abuse.  That’s from Morales versus City [sic] of Men -- 

Mendocino. That is -- our -- our position is that they did not have, number one, our 

position -- and the facts are disputed here that Mr. Eggleston was coerced, he was 

forced, he was given this horrible option of, do I -- do you take my kids now or do I 

sign over the temporary guardianship?  There were representations about the 

temporary guardianship such as the Callahan’s were not gonna leave the state and 

other facts that came out that Ms. McFarland will testify to at trial that were told to 

her.  And those were part of the reasons that the guardianship was signed but the 

testimony is going to be that Mr. Eggleston was under duress and was coerced and 

felt like if he didn’t sign that he would never see his kids again.  So, when you’ve got 
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a coercion there -- you have an issue of fact of whether this was voluntary or not.   

  The state may not remove children from the parent’s custody without a 

court order unless there is specific articulable evidence that provides reasonable 

cause to believe that a child is in eminent danger of abuse.  That is the whole issue 

here of whether the case worker, DFS did their job and had a reasonable -- a 

reasonable -- something reasonable to believe that these children should have been 

removed.  Whether reasonable cause to believe in indigent circumstances existed is 

a question of fact for the jury.  We’re in debate here, we’ve got the Defendant saying 

we had -- absolutely that this was reasonable, we have all these factors, we had 

every right to remove these children, but you have our facts that suggest that’s not 

true.  There was no investigation; they relied on Lisa Callahan’s statement of 

apparently Mr. Eggleston’s failure to protect these children which by the way the 

failure to protect wasn’t even substantiated.  That wasn’t even an allegation that was 

substantiated.  Those are the things that we’re in debate on and those are facts for 

the jury to determine.  The jury should determine the sufficiency of the investigation, 

the scope of the intrusion on this family.  Those are questions for fact.  Absent 

reasonable suspicion, the court’s removal of children from their parents is an 

arbitrary abuse of power that violates substantive due process so whether it’s clearly 

established.   

  The case of Garver versus Washoe County which relies on Mabe, I 

don’t know if I’m saying right, M-a-b-e, Wallis and Rogers which are all cases that 

are cited in our briefing.  Garver versus Washoe County which is a 2011 case out of 

District of Nevada states:  “The law was clearly established in the 9th Circuit that 

officials including social workers violate these rights if they remove a child without a 

warrant absent information at the time of the seizure that establishes reasonable 
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cause to believe the child is in eminent danger of seriously -- serious bodily injury 

and the scope of the intrusion is reasonably necessary to avert the specific injury.”  

Then again in Romero versus Washoe County the court again said in the District of 

Nevada: “The 9th Circuit has repeatedly articulated the legal standard to be applied 

in these circumstances.  The 9th Circuit had stated exclusively that a reasonable 

social worker would need nothing more to understand that she may not remove a 

child from its home absent reasonable cause to believe that the child is in eminent 

danger of experiencing serious bodily injury.”  In this case we had a decision that 

was made on January, I think 6th, the morning of January 6th.  They didn’t come to 

the house until the next day so I would submit to this Court there was no eminent 

injury there and that there was time to get a court order or a proper court 

authorization to remove these children if that’s -- that’s what DFS thought was the 

appropriate.  Further, in the case of Costanich versus Department of Social and 

Health Services which is a 9th Circuit case the court quoted and I believe in a 

footnote:  “Our sister circuits have denied qualified immunity to social workers who 

removed children from their families based on unreliable evidence in violation of the 

due process rights and integrity.”  So, while the 9th Circuit had said you need -- the 

idea of qualified immunity is putting somebody on notice.  It’s something clearly 

established should somebody be put on notice because if they’re not put on notice 

it’s not fair to suggest that they’re violating their constitutional right, but the 9th Circuit 

doesn’t require it, the case law doesn’t require that there’s a specific case on point 

just that their placed on notice and it’s beyond debate.   

  In Rogers which I have cited to this Court the court reversed a finding of 

qualified immunity because a reasonable social worker who would have understood 

that the children faced no eminent risk of serious bodily harm as required by clearly 
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established law.  In that case the court found no exigency despite the evident 

malnourishment and disorderly conditions in the home because the social worker 

conceded she could have obtained a warrant within hours and there was no risk of 

worsening of physical condition in that short time.  Similarly in the case of Anderson- 

versus [sic] Francois versus City of Sonoma another 9th Circuit case out of 2011.  

The court affirmed the denial of qualified immunity where an officer could have 

obtained a warrant within a few hours and did not have reasonable cause to believe 

the children were in eminent danger.  So, the law is clear.  It is clear we established 

what a case worker can and cannot do, and the biggest argument here frankly is for 

the trier of fact which is whether it was reasonable to make the decision to remove 

these children because even though the children weren’t removed DFS made a 

decision to remove the children and it was only when they showed up the house that 

these two options occurred; the removal or you can sign this voluntary guardianship 

or never see the kids again but they made a decision to remove those kids and we 

are -- should be allowed in front a jury to challenge the reasonableness of that jur -- 

that -- that decision.  So, Your Honor, for those reasons we would ask the Motion for 

Summary Judgment be denied. 

 THE COURT:  With respect to the state claims -- 

 MS. ARMENI:  Yes, Your Honor. 

 THE COURT:  -- like intentional infliction of emotional distress.  What injury 

did your client suffer as a result?  You gotta have a physical injury to go with that. 

 MS. ARMENI:  I think we cited the case -- and I can pull my brief.  I don’t 

believe that a physical injury is needed.  I mean, we commented on the depression 

and the stress that was also found by Dr. Paglini in his report.  Your Honor, on page 

21 of our opposition -- 
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 THE COURT:  I’m at -- 

 MS. ARMENI:  -- line 18. 

 THE COURT:  -- page 22.  Yeah.  Okay. 

 MS.ARMENI:  The elements does not require a physical injury, such injury is 

not a prerequisite to establish an emotional distress, Sadler versus PacifiCare of 

Nevada.   

 THE COURT:  And that gets into the sliding scale, right? 

 MS. ARMENI:  Yes, Your Honor.   

 THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Okay.  All right. 

 MS. GALATI:  Ready? 

 THE COURT:  Yes. 

 MS. GALATI:  All right.  Thank you, Your Honor.  The Plaintiff makes much 

ado about irrelevant facts in this case.  The argument on the 1983 claim is simple.  

What constitutes the violation of parental rights, the liberty interest or familial 

association?  Removal or termination of parental rights.  Period.  Plaintiff wants to 

make this argument that Stuart went to the house and he was gonna removal [sic] or 

something else and she didn’t have a basis to do that, etcetera, etcetera, etcetera.  

She didn’t remove the kids so there can’t be any analysis as to whether it was 

appropriate or not appropriate.  If he decided she should remove the kids then she 

would have taken the kids, there would have been a protective capacity hearing and 

there would have been a determination and then Plaintiff would have an argument 

because Plaintiff could say she removed the kids.  She didn’t have a basis to 

remove the kids.  She didn’t do this, she didn’t do that.  The removal never 

happened.  It was one option that was rejected by the Plaintiff.  That does not trigger 

a constitutional right, it just does not.  She -- Plaintiff talks about how the First 
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Judicial District Court rubberstamped the decision.  Well, my understanding is that 

competing orders were submitted and the First Judicial District Court chose the 

order that it signed.   

  The other aspect about -- she goes on about Plaintiff being forced to 

sign.  Well, not only did he have legal advice and took his lawyer’s advice to sign he 

left the premises, he went to the UPS and he signed the temporary guardianship in 

front of a notary and then came back to the house.  He had time to consider, he had 

legal advice, he wasn’t forced, but at the end of the day you don’t even have to get 

there, Your Honor, because we didn’t take the kids and we didn’t terminate his 

rights.  He decided to give a temporary guardianship which was his right.  Now, 

things didn’t turn out the way he wanted them to, that is not the responsibility of the 

county.  That’s either his responsibility, his lawyer’s responsibility or Lisa Callahan’s 

responsibility if something happened after the fact not the county’s responsibility.   

  There were a number of arguments that Ms. Armeni made that are not 

in the opposition so I would ask Your Honor to -- to reject them.  And to say that -- I 

mean, she -- she’s still persisting in making arguments that I had pointed out in the 

reply are misrepresentations of the Nevada Supreme Court’s decisions.  The 

Nevada Supreme Court was reviewing a 12(b) dismissal as such all facts, all 

allegations were soon to be true.  It didn’t know anything about what happened, it 

didn’t know management made a decision that the family could have options; the 

two options were the removal or guardianship.  It didn’t know that Plaintiff spoke to 

his lawyer, it didn’t know that he took her advice; it didn’t know that he signed based 

on that advice.  I mean, it didn’t know anything, it made no substantive decision.  It 

was assuming everything was alleged in the complaint so it doesn’t have any 

persuasive value here because here this Court must determine questions of law 
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based on well-established decades long 1983 law.  Every one of those cases that 

she mentioned from the 9th Circuit there was removal.  She didn’t tell you there’s a 

case that -- that said that DFS or CPS went to the house and they said removal or 

guardianship.  No, there was no removal.  So, if there’s a removal then you can 

examine if it’s proper under 1983.  There was no removal so you can’t examine that. 

    Plaintiff wants to -- argues that they should be able to -- to present to a 

jury the case and have the jury decide if, you know, Ms. Stuart’s conduct was 

reasonable.  Let’s be clear, the 1983 standard not reasonable.  Deliberate 

indifference.  Let’s also be clear about the facts.  Georgina worked for a long period 

of time to get in home services.  She had her meeting with management on January 

6th late in the afternoon; management said no in-home services, two choices; 

removal or temporary guardianship.  She had an obligation to deliver that message 

to the family and she did and the family chose.  Those are the facts.  On those facts 

and all federal law for the three reasons we’ve stated Defendants are entitled to 

summary judgment on the 1983 claim. 

 THE COURT:  Thank you.  All right.  I want to take this one under advisement.  

I read your briefs, I did not get a chance to read through that 38, 39 paged order and 

I didn’t get a chance to look at -- read all of your case law and I’d to do that before I 

make a decision, okay?  I’ll try and get it out right away because I know you guys 

are preparing for trial. 

 MS. ARMENI:  Thank you. 

*  *  *  *  * 

*  *  *  *  * 

*  *  *  *  * 

*  *  *  *  * 
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 MS. GALATI:  We appreciate it, Your Honor.  Thank you 

 

[Proceedings concluded at 9:59 a.m.] 

*  *  *  *  *  
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